
 Page 1 
 

AGENDA 
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

October 13, 2022 | 6:45 PM 
(or immediately following the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee Meeting)  

Council Chambers 
City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 

 
 
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the City of Lucas Planning and Zoning Commission will be held on October 13, 
2022, at 6:45 pm (or immediately following the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee) at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country 
Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651, at which time the following agenda will be discussed. As authorized by Section 
551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Planning and Zoning Commission may convene into closed Executive Session 
for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the 
meeting. 
 
If you would like to watch the meeting live, you may go to the City’s live streaming link at 
https://www.lucastexas.us/live-streaming-videos/. 
 
How to Provide Input at a Meeting:  
 
Speak In Person: Request to Speak forms will be available at the meeting. Please fill out the form and 
give to the Management Analyst prior to the start of the meeting. This form will also allow a place for 
comments.  
 
Submit Written Comments: If you are unable to attend a meeting and would like to submit written 
comments regarding a specific agenda item, email Management Analyst Kevin Becker at 
kbecker@lucastexas.us by no later than 3:30 pm the day of the meeting. The email must contain the 
person’s name, address, phone number, and the agenda item(s) for which comments will be made. Any 
requests received after 3:30 pm will not be included at the meeting. 
 
Call to Order  
 
• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum 
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Public Hearing Agenda 

 

 
1. Public hearing to consider a request made by Andrea Bedell on behalf of property owner James 

Irwin to rezone a parcel of land from Residential 2-acres (R2) to Agricultural (AO), being 22.661 
acres, situated in the James Lovelady Survey, Abstract No. 538, in the City of Lucas, Collin 
County, Texas. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
B. Conduct public hearing 
C. Take action regarding the proposed rezoning request  

 

https://www.lucastexas.us/live-streaming-videos/
mailto:kbecker@lucastexas.us


 Page 2 
 

 
Regular Agenda 

 

 
2.  Consider the request by Randy Helmburger on behalf of Christopher White for a preliminary plat 

for a parcel of land, being 10.83 acres, part of the Thomas D. James Survey, Abstract 477, City 
of Lucas, Collin County Texas, located on the south side of East Winningkoff Road and east of 
Welborn Lane, more commonly known as 1110 East Winningkoff Road. (Development Services 
Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
3.  Discuss accessory buildings with habitable space regarding guest quarters in all residential 

zoning districts and provide guidance to staff. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 
 
4. Consider approval of the minutes of the September 8, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission 

meeting. (Management Analyst Kevin Becker) 
 
Executive Agenda 

 

As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Planning and Zoning Commission may convene into closed Executive 
Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the 
meeting. This meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.  

 
5. Executive Session: An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting. 

6. Adjournment. 
 
Certification 
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board at Lucas City 
Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on October 7, 
2022. 

 
 

_____________________________________ 
Kent Souriyasak, Assistant to the City Manager 

 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons attending 
public meetings at City Hall.  Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to Management Analyst Kevin Becker 
at 972-912-1214 or by email at kbecker@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Agenda Request 

October 13, 2022 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Public hearing to consider a request made by Andrea Bedell on behalf of property owner James 
Irwin to rezone a parcel of land from Residential 2-acres (R2) to Agricultural (AO), being 22.661 
acres, situated in the James Lovelady Survey, Abstract No. 538, in the City of Lucas, Collin 
County, Texas. 
 

A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
B. Conduct public hearing 
C. Take action regarding the proposed rezoning request  

 
Background Information  
 
This lot is currently zoned Residential 2-acres (R2), and the applicant is requesting a zoning 
change to Agricultural (AO). The parcel was zoned R2 at the owner’s request and approved by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission at the August 12, 2021, meeting and by City Council on 
the September 2, 2021 meeting. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Location Map 
2. Public Notice 
3.         Depiction 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff does not recommend approval of the zoning request as presented.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to recommend to the City Council to approve/deny a request made by Andrea 
Bedell on behalf of property owner James Irwin to rezone a parcel of land from Residential 2-
acres (R2) to Agricultural (AO), being 22.661 acres, situated in the James Lovelady Survey, 
Abstract No. 538, in the City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas. 
 
 



LOCATION MAP



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Notice is hereby given, that the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas will 
hold a public hearing on Thursday, October 13, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country 
Club, Lucas, Texas to consider changing the zoning on a parcel of land from R-2 to AO more 
particularly described as follows: 
 
Being a tract of land, situated in the James Lovelady Survey, Abstract No. 538, in the City of Lucas, 
Collin County, Texas, and being all of that called 22.661 acre tract of land, described by deed to 
Gus Gibson, Jr. and Walter G. Bedell, as recorded in Volume 1889, Page 283, of the Deed Records, 
Collin County, Texas (D.R.C.C.T.), said tract being more particularly described, as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2" iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped "RPLS 5686" found for the 
northwesterly corner of said 22.661 acre tract, same being the northeasterly corner of a tract of 
land, described by deed to Chris Koerner and Jessica Koerner, as recorded under Document No. 
20160725000950450, of the Official Public Records, Collin County, Texas (O.P.R.C.C.T.), same 
being in the southerly monumented line of W. Lucas Road (F.M. 1378); 
 
THENCE South 89°43'16" East, along said southerly monumented line of W. Lucas Road, a 
distance of 739.61' to a 5/8" iron rod found for the northeasterly corner of said 22.661 acre tract, 
same being the northwesterly corner of a right-of-way dedication, dedicated by plat recorded in 
Vol. 2009, Pg. 224, O.P.R.C.C.T. (LUCAS CHURCH ADDITION); 
 
THENCE South 00°19'15" East, along the common line between said 22.661 acre tract and said 
LUCAS CHURCH ADDITION, passing a 1/2" iron rod found for the northwesterly corner of Lot 
1, Block A, of said LUCAS CHURCH ADDITION, at a distance of 15.00', and continuing in all, a 
total distance of 1283.67' to a point for corner, being the southeasterly corner of said 22.661 acre 
tract, same being in the northerly line of Lot 3, of HI FLYIN' ACRES, an addition to the City of 
Parker, as recorded in Volume J, Page 929, of the Map Records, Collin County, Texas 
(M.R.C.C.T.), from which a 5/8" iron rod found bears, South 00°34'004" East, a distance of 3.60'; 
 
THENCE North 89°38'41" West, along the southerly line of said 22.661 acre tract, same being 
along the northerly line of said Lot 3, passing a 1/2" iron rod found, at a distance of 212.71', for the 
northwesterly corner of said Lot 3, same being the northeasterly corner of Lot 2, of said HI FLYIN' 
ACRES, and continuing along the northerly line of said Lot 2, a total distance of 516.44' to a 1/2" 
iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped "RPLS 5686" set for the northwesterly corner of said 
Lot 2; 
 
THENCE North 89°49'30" West, along the southerly line of said 22.661 acre tract, a distance of 
283.67' to a 1" iron rod found for the southwesterly corner of said 22.661 acre tract, same being on 
the southerly side of Stinson Road, said corner also being the southeasterly corner of a tract of land, 



described by deed to Adagio Investments, Inc., as recorded under Document No. 
20180111000049020, O.P.R.C.C.T.; 
 
THENCE North 02°22'44" East, along the westerly line of said 22.661 acre, same being the easterly 
line of said Adagio Investments, LLC tract, passing a 1/2" iron rod found, at a distance of 44.70' 
and continuing a distance of 390.43' (total easterly line of said Adagio tract: 435.13') a 1/2" iron rod 
found for the northeasterly corner of said Adagio Investments, LLC tract, same being the 
southeasterly corner of the aforementioned Koerner tract, and continuing, in all, a total distance of 
1284.29' to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 987,894 square feet or 22.679 acres of land, 
more or less.  
 
 
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend.  If you are 
unable to attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, City Secretary, 665 
Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002, email kbecker@lucastexas.us, and it will be presented 
at the Hearing. If you have any questions about the above hearing, you may contact 
jhilbourn@lucastexas.us  
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:kbecker@lucastexas.us
mailto:jhilbourn@lucastexas.us




Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Agenda Request 

October 13, 2022 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
Agenda Item  
 
Consider the request by Randy Helmburger on behalf of Christopher White for a preliminary plat 
for a parcel of land, being 10.83 acres, part of the Thomas D. James Survey, Abstract 477, City 
of Lucas, Collin County Texas, located on the south side of East Winningkoff Road and east of 
Welborn Lane, more commonly known as 1110 East Winningkoff Road. 
 
Background Information  
 
At the September 8, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the Commission made a 
recommendation to City Council to approve a zoning change for this property from MHD 
(Manufactured Home District) to Residential 2-acre (R2). The requestor was seeking approval of 
a preliminary plat during this meeting, but the item requesting approval of the preliminary plat 
was pulled. 
 
The applicant Christopher White has requested to bring this item for consideration of the 
preliminary plat for this property. The applicant intends to subdivide the acreage into two parcels 
to create a two-acre parcel and an 8.43-acre tract. The net acreage will be 10.508 acres following 
platting. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Preliminary Plat  
2. Location Map 
3. Plat Application  

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends approval of the preliminary plat. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to recommend to City Council to approve/deny the request by Randy 
Helmburger on behalf of Christopher White for a preliminary plat for a parcel of land, being 
10.83 acres, part of the Thomas D. James Survey, Abstract 477, City of Lucas, Collin County 
Texas, located on the south side of East Winningkoff Road and east of Welborn Lane, more 
commonly known as 1110 East Winningkoff Road. 





LOCATION MAP









Item No. 03 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Agenda Request 

October 13, 2022 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Discuss accessory buildings with habitable space regarding guest quarters in all residential 
zoning districts and provide guidance to staff. 
 
Background Information  
 
There have been ongoing concerns expressed from both the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and the City Council regarding accessory buildings with habitable space. At the June 2, 2022, 
City Council meeting, a discussion occurred relating to the size of accessory buildings allowed in 
residential and agricultural zoning districts. The City Council recommended that the Planning 
and Zoning Commission evaluate the allowable size of accessory buildings and the number of 
allowable homes and/or accessory buildings per acre. 
 
At the August 11, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the Commission discussed 
square footage of accessory buildings being allowed on properties and agreed with the changes 
to the square footage of habitable space and making the square footage of attached garages, 
porches, and patios to equal 400 square feet combined for R1 (Residential 1-acre), AO 
(Agricultural), R1.5 (Residential 1.5-acres), and R2 (Residential 2-acres). 
 
This item was brought back at the September 8, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting 
as a public hearing item but was denied in order to have further discussions on the item. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Code of Ordinances, Article 14.04 Supplementary Regulations, Section 14.04.304 

General accessory buildings and structures regulations, paragraph (4) 
2. Proposed revisions to the allowable square feet of accessory building with habitable 

space 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation   
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
There is no motion required. 



Current accessory building requirements for habitable space 

Chapter 14, Article 14.04, Division 8, Section 14.04.304 

(4)     An accessory building may contain habitable space as defined by the International 
Residential Code adopted by the city and may be occupied provided it is in compliance with the 
following: 

(A)     General regulations for accessory buildings containing habitable space. Any 
accessory building containing habitable space shall comply with the following: 

(i)     Accessory buildings containing habitable space shall meet the requirements 
of the International Residential Code as adopted by the city from time to time. 

(ii)     Accessory buildings containing habitable space may not be rented out 
separate and apart from the main structure. 

(iii)     Detached accessory buildings containing habitable space shall be limited to 
a maximum height of 25 feet measured to the peak of the roof of the structure. 

(iv)     Accessory buildings containing habitable space shall not contain a kitchen, 
cooking or food preparation area except as provided for in subsection (B)(i)a. 
below. 

(B)     Specific regulations for an accessory building containing habitable space. 

(i)     In R-2 or AO zoning districts that contain a single-family home: 

a.     Kitchen, cooking or a food preparation area may be permitted on 
property with a specific use permit. The specific use permit may only be 
granted provided the owners of the property enact a deed restriction with the 
city as party to the deed restriction that prohibits the use of the habitable 
space to be used for lease/barter agreement other than that of the full-time 
domestic staff providing support to the property. 

b.     One (1) accessory building may contain up to 1,500 square feet of 
habitable space. 

(ii)     In R-1.5 zoning districts: 

a.     One (1) accessory building may contain up to 1,200 square feet of 
habitable space. 

(iii)     In R-1 zoning districts: 

a.     One (1) accessory building may contain up to 1,000 square feet of 
habitable space. 



Proposed edits to the accessory building requirements for habitable space 

Chapter 14, Article 14.04, Division 8, Section 14.04.304 
 
(4) An accessory building may contain habitable space as defined by the International 

Residential Code adopted by the city and may be occupied provided it is in compliance 
with the following: 

 
(A)     General regulations for accessory buildings containing habitable space. Any 
accessory building containing habitable space shall comply with the following: 

(i)     Accessory buildings containing habitable space shall meet the requirements 
of the International Residential Code as adopted by the city from time to time. 
 
(ii)     Accessory buildings containing habitable space may not be rented out 
separate and apart from the main structure. 
 
(iii)     Detached accessory buildings containing habitable space shall be limited to 
a maximum height of 25 feet measured to the peak of the roof of the structure. 
 
(iv)     Accessory buildings containing habitable space shall not contain a kitchen, 
cooking or food preparation area except as provided for in subsection (B)(i)a. 
below. 

 
(B)     Specific regulations for an accessory building containing habitable space. 

(i)     In R-2 zoning districts that contain a single-family home: 

a.     Kitchen, cooking, or a food preparation area may be permitted on 
property with a specific use permit. The specific use permit may only be 
granted provided the owners of the property enact a deed restriction with the 
city as party to the deed restriction that prohibits the use of the habitable 
space to be used for lease/barter agreement other than that of the full-time 
domestic staff providing support to the property. 
 
b.     One (1) accessory building may contain up to 900 square feet of 
habitable space, and up to 400 square feet of attached garages, porches, and 
patios. 

(ii)     In R-1.5 zoning districts: 

a.     One (1) accessory building may contain up to 700 square feet of 
habitable space and up to 400 square feet of attached garages, porches, and 
patios. 

(iii)     In R-1 or AO zoning districts: 

a.     One (1) accessory building may contain up to 550 square feet of 
habitable space and up to 400 square feet of attached garages, porches, and 
patios. 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Agenda Request 

October 13, 2022 
 

Requester: Management Analyst Kevin Becker 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider approval of the minutes of the September 8, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting. 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. September 8, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission minutes. 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation   
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve the minutes of the September 8, 2022, Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting. 
 
 
 

 

 

 



1 | P a g e   P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  
  S e p t e m b e r  8 ,  2 0 2 2  

MINUTES 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

September 8, 2022 | 6:30 PM  
Council Chambers 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 

Call to Order  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 
Commissioners Present: Staff Present: 
Chairman Dusty Kuykendall 
Commissioner Peggy Rusterholtz 
Commissioner Adam Sussman 
Commissioner Joe Williams 
 
Commissioners Absent: 
Vice Chairman Tommy Tolson 
Alternate Commissioner James Foster 
Alternate Commissioner Chris Bierman 

City Manager Joni Clarke  
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Management Analyst Kevin Becker 
City Attorney Courtney Morris (arrived 6:40 pm) 
 
City Council Liaison Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
 

  
Regular Agenda 

 

 
1. Public hearing to consider amendments to allowable size of accessory buildings with 

habitable space regarding guest quarters in all residential zoning districts. 
 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation on this item and answered 
questions from the Commission. Mr. Hilbourn stated that this item should be either tabled or 
denied bringing the item back for further discussion. 
 
The Commission discussed the definitions of the building code and habitable space and wanted to 
look at adding information regarding the number of allowable homes and accessory buildings per 
acre. 
 
Mayor Olk spoke to the Commission and stated that the Commission can review and discuss the 
possibility of creating new definitions to present to City Council for changes. 
 
Chairman Kuykendall opened the public hearing at 6:47 pm. 
 
With no further comments, the public hearing was closed at 6:47 pm. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Rusterholtz, seconded by Commissioner 

Sussman, to deny the consideration of amendments to allowable size of accessory 
buildings in order to have another discussion on the item. The motion passed 
unanimously by a 4 to 0 vote.  

 
  



2 | P a g e   P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  
  S e p t e m b e r  8 ,  2 0 2 2  

2.  Public hearing to consider a request by Christopher White, property owner of 1110 
East Winningkoff Road, to rezone a parcel of land from MHD (Manufactured Home 
District) to Residential 2-acres, situated in the Thomas D. James Survey, Abstract 
No. 477, a 3.65 acre Tract 1, 3.59 acre Tract 2, and 3.59 acre Tract 3. 

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation on this item. 
 
Chairman Kuykendall opened the public hearing at 6:50 pm. 
 
With no further comments, the public hearing was closed at 6:50 pm. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Sussman, seconded by Commissioner 

Williams, to recommend to the City Council to approve the request by Christopher 
White, property owner of 1110 East Winningkoff Road, to rezone a parcel of land 
from MHD (Manufacture Home District) to Residential 2-acres, situated in the 
Thomas D. James Survey, Abstract No. 477, a 3.65 acre Tract 1, 3.59 acre Tract 2, 
and 3.59 acre Tract 3. The motion passed unanimously by a 4 to 0 vote.  

 
3. Consider the request by Randy Helmburger on behalf of Christopher White for a 

preliminary plat for a parcel of land, being 10.83 acres, part of the Thomas D. James 
Survey, Abstract 477, City of Lucas, Collin County Texas, located on the south side of 
East Winningkoff Road and east of Welborn Lane, more commonly known as 1110 
East Winningkoff Road. 

 
There was no discussion on this item as it was pulled from the Agenda. 
 
4. Consider a request by Karl D. Williams, to vacate the existing plat of Wendy Farms 

Addition creating 13 single family lots being all of a 53.788 tract of land situated in 
the John W. Kirby Survey, Abstract 506, Peter F. Lucas Survey Abstract 537, and the 
Benjamin Sparks Survey Abstract 813 located on the north end of Wendy Lane, more 
commonly known as 1355 Wendy Lane.. 

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation on this item. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Rusterholtz, seconded by Commissioner 

Sussman, to approve vacating the existing plat of Wendy Farms Addition creating 13 
single family lots being all of a 53.788 tract of land situated in the John W. Kirby 
Survey, Abstract 506, Peter F. Lucas Survey Abstract 537, and the Benjamin Sparks 
Survey Abstract 813 located on the north end of Wendy Lane, more commonly 
known as 1355 Wendy Lane. The motion passed unanimously by a 4 to 0 vote.  

 
5. Consider approval of the minutes of the August 11, 2022, Planning and Zoning 

Commission meeting. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Sussman, seconded by Commissioner 

Williams to approve the minutes of the July 14, 2022, Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting. The motion passed unanimously by a 4 to 0 vote.  

 
4. Executive Session.  
 
An Executive Session was not held at this meeting. 



3 | P a g e   P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  
  S e p t e m b e r  8 ,  2 0 2 2  

 
 
5. Adjournment. 
 
Chairman Kuykendall adjourned the meeting at 6:54 pm. 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Dusty Kuykendall, Chairman      Kevin Becker, Management Analyst  


	00 - Agenda
	AGENDA
	Call to Order
	Certification

	01 - Public Hearing for Zoning Change
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	01a - Location 22.661 Acres Irwin
	01b - Irwin Public Notice 22.661 acre zoning case R2 to AO (003)
	01c - depiction 22.661 acre zoning case
	02 - Consider Preliminary Plat for 1110 East Winningkoff CS
	Agenda Item
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	02a - White Addition_Lots 1&2, Block A_07.19.22
	02b - Location Map
	02c - White Addition ~ Platting Application_Redacted
	03 - Discuss Accessory Buildings with Habitable Space
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	This item was brought back at the September 8, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting as a public hearing item but was denied in order to have further discussions on the item.
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03a - Current Accessory Building Requirements for Habitable Space
	03b - Proposed Edits to Accessory Building Requirements for Habitable Space
	04 - P&Z Minutes CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	04a - 09-08-2022 P&Z minutes



